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ORD Taxiway ChartingRe:

FOR YOUR INFORMATION

We recently received ASRS reports describing a safety concern that may involve your area of
operational responsibility. We do not have sufficient details to assess either the factual accuracy or
possible gravity of the report. It is our policy to relay the reported information to the appropriate
authority for evaluation and any necessary follow-up. We feel you should be aware of the enclosed
deidentified report.

Aviation Safety Reporting System
P.O. Box 189  |  Moffett Field, CA  |  94035-0189

To properly assess the usefulness of our alert message service, we would appreciate it if
you would  take the time to give us your feedback on the value of the information that we
have provided.  Please contact Dr. Becky Hooey at (408) 541-2854 or email at
becky.l.hooey@nasa.gov.

Airport Manager, Chicago O'Hare Int'l, (ORD), FAA (AAS-1), Jeppesen 
Sanderson Inc.

FAA (Director of Air Traffic Operations CSA, ATM ORD ATCT, AAS-300, AVP-1 
AVP-200, AGL-600, AFS-260, AFS-200, AJI-144, Runway Safety Team), A4A, 
AAAE, ALPA, AOPA, APA, ASAP, ATSAP, ATSG, CAPA, IATA, ICASS, IFALPA, 
IPA, NATCA, NBAA, NTSB, RAA, SWAPA

Becky L. Hooey, Director
NASA Aviation Safety Reporting System

To:

Info:

From:



ACN 2141992 

 DATE / TIME 

Date of Occurrence   202407 
Local Time Of Day   1801 to 2400 

 PLACE 

Locale   ORD.Airport 
State   IL 
Altitude ‐ AGL   0 

 ENVIRONMENT 

Flight Conditions   VMC 

 AIRCRAFT / EQUIPMENT X 

ATC / Advisory ‐ Ramp   ORD 
Make Model Name   Commercial Fixed Wing 
Operating Under FAR Part   121 

 PERSON 1 

Function ‐ Flight Crew   First Officer 
ASRS Report Number   2141992 

 PERSON 2 

Function ‐ Flight Crew   Captain 
ASRS Report Number   2141986 

 EVENTS 

Anomaly  Deviation / Discrepancy ‐ Procedural ‐  Clearance 
Anomaly  Deviation / Discrepancy ‐ Procedural ‐  Published 

Material / Policy 
Anomaly  Ground Incursion ‐  Taxiway 
Detector ‐ Person   Air Traffic Control 
Result ‐ Flight Crew   Became Reoriented 
Result ‐ Flight Crew   Requested ATC Assistance / Clarification 
Result ‐ Air Traffic Control   Issued New Clearance 
Result ‐ Air Traffic Control   Provided Assistance 

 NARRATIVE 1 

While taxiing out of the "Y" in ORD, Ramp Tower gave us clearance to hold short of U taxiway and contact 
Metering. I, the FO, read back that we will taxi via A and hold short of U. Once we started taxiing, the Captain 
noticed that we will be exiting non‐movement area by following instructions. He taxied very slowly and asked 
me to go to Metering and after that to Ground, as instructed. Ground told us that we have entered an active 
taxiway without permission and after giving us our taxiing clearance to the runway, they also gave us a 
number to call for possible pilot deviation. We did not understand what was wrong because we followed 
instruction according to what was on the Jeppeson Chart 20‐9, which hasn't been updated to show that 
Taxiway 'U' continues south behind Terminals E and F. The Captain thought it was odd that Ramp cleared us 
onto an active taxiway. We should have verified what seemed like a non‐standard clearance. The Captain 
called back to Ramp and they said Taxiway U had been extended two days ago. Later in the flight, at a time of 
low area of vulnerability, we reviewed the charts and realized that Chart 20‐9B shows the updated U taxiway, 
but 20‐9 does not. There were also no NOTAMs about the change. The Captain called the phone number given 
to us upon landing in ZZZ, but no one was there to take the call. He called again this morning and was told that 
there have been numerous other aircraft making the same mistake. He explained to them that the Jepp charts 



are not correctly showing the updated U taxiway, and they thanked him for the information and 
recommended filing a report. 

 

Cause: Poor airport diagram layout from Jepp charts. Additionally, the Captain and I assumed the charts 
should match so we did not double‐check the terminal chart, 20‐9. We should have verified the clearance with 
Ground as soon as the Captain had a bad feeling of being cleared onto an active taxiway by Ramp Tower. 
Jeppesen charts should update the airport diagram and make sure that the taxiway south of the "Y" is 
correctly labeled U to avoid future incursions. We will also be more diligent about confirming clearances when 
they do not seem right. 

 NARRATIVE 2 

While taxing out of the "Y" in ORD, Ramp Tower gave us a clearance to hold short of U taxiway and contact 
Metering. My FO read back that we will taxi via A and hold short of U. Once we started taxiing I noticed that 
we will be exiting non‐movement area by following instructions. I taxied really slow and asked my FO to go to 
Metering and after that to Ground as instructed. Ground told us that we have entered an active taxiway 
without permission and after giving us our taxiing clearance to the runway, they also gave us a number to call 
for a possible pilot deviation. We did not understand what was wrong because we followed instructions 
according to what we could see on the chart, even though for me it was weird that Ramp Tower cleared us 
onto an active taxiway. I should have verified what seemed as a nonstandard clearance. I talked back to Ramp 
and they told us that U taxiway changed two days ago, and I kept that thought until we got to cruise flight and 
entered a low area of vulnerability. We reviewed the charts with my FO and realized that the airport diagram, 
which we used to taxi out, does not match the terminal chart. On the airport diagram, the taxiway south of 
the "Y" does not have a name and the closest letter to it is "A," while on the terminal chart that taxiway has 
been renamed from A to U. There were no NOTAMs about the change. I talked with Tower one day after and 
the controller told me that the same event has happened multiple times since the change, and they asked me 
why do I think it has been happening. I explained her that Jepp charts are not correctly laid out, and then they 
thanked me for the information and recommended filing a report.  

 

Cause: Poor airport diagram layout from Jepp charts. Additionally, the FO and I assumed the charts should 
match so did not double‐check the terminal chart. Also, I should have verified the clearance with Tower as 
soon as I had the bad feeling of being cleared to taxi on a taxiway by Ramp Tower.  

 

Suggestions: Jeppesen charts should update the airport diagram layout and make sure that the taxiway south 
of the "Y" says U clearly to avoid future events. Double‐check clearances when they do not seem right. 

 SYNOPSIS 

Air carrier flight crew reported entering an active taxiway at ORD without clearance after following instruction 
from Ramp and looking at the charts. During cruise, the flight crew discovered that the airport diagram and 
terminal charts were different from one another, with the same taxiway having a different identifier between 
the two charts. 

 


